
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL 

Chief Executive 
 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Friday, 23 March 2018 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 
 

The Trent Room, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek 

15 March 2018 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence, if any.  

2. Urgent items of business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

3. To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the previous meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

 Meeting held on Friday 10 November 2017. 
 

4. Declarations of interest, if any:  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interest; 

 Other interests. 
 

5. Annual Review of Councillor Development (Pages 7 - 10) 

6. Local Government Ethical Standards Consultation (Pages 11 - 18) 

7. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The Chair to move:- 
 
"That pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated." 
 

8. To approve as a correct record the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting. 
(Pages 19 - 20) 

 Meeting held on Friday 10 November 2017. 

Public Document Pack



 

9. Standards Complaints Monitoring Report. (Pages 21 - 26) 

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Standards Committee (SMDC) 
Councillor E Fallows (Chair) Councillor T Hall (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor A Banks Councillor G Bond 
Councillor I Herdman Councillor K J Jackson 
Councillor J T Jones Councillor I Lawson 
Councillor P Wilkinson P Brough 
D Fowler H Mawdsley 
C Meyrick B Steans 

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

FRIDAY, 10 NOVEMBER 2017 
 
PRESENT: Councillor E Fallows (Chair)  
 
 Councillors G Bond, T Hall, K J Jackson, I Lawson and  

Mr. H Mawdsley 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor D H Ogden  
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor A Banks. Messrs. P Brough, D Fowler and B Steans 
 

8 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN). 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

9 TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Standards Committee held on 

21 July 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair. 

 
10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY: 

 
There were no declarations made. 
 

11 PROPOSALS TO UPDATE DISQUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR ELECTED 
MEMBERS 
 
Central Government were proposing amendments to the criteria which disqualify 
individuals from being elected, or holding office, as a local authority member or 
directly elected mayor. Paul Rushworth – Corporate Services Manager (Legal and 
Elections) and Deputy Monitoring Officer – presented the report to members 
highlighting;- a) the existing criteria and b) the proposed criteria. 
 
The proposed main differences were to prohibit those subject to the notification 
requirements (commonly referred to as ‘being on the sex offenders register’) and 
those subject to certain anti-social behaviour sanctions from being local authority 
members. 
 
The Appendix attached to the report contained a series of questions which were to 
form the basis to any response that the committee wished to make in support of the 
consultation exercise. 
 
Members raised various queries to points contained in the report:- 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee (SMDC) - 10 November 2017 
 

2 
 

 Clarify the term ‘Civil Injunction’? (An injunction against causing harassment, 
alarm or distress, involving a civil burden of proof). 

 Why were Police & Crime Commissioners not included? (There were 
separate disqualification criteria in place specifically for PCCs which included 
‘any criminal conviction’). 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED – That a consultation response be issued to the Department 
for Communities and Local Government supporting all the proposals contained 
within the report. 
 

12 STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 
 
The report was presented to members by Linden Vernon and provided an overview 
of the issues considered by the Standards Committee during 2016/17 and included:- 
 

 Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the 
Code of Conduct; 

 The Annual Letter received from the Local Government 
Ombudsman; 

 An annual review of Councillor development; 
 Local Public Services Senior Managers’ Code of Ethics ; 
 Code of Conduct – Dispensations; 
 Review of the Council’s Local Ethical Framework. 

 
The Committee had monitored complaints received regarding alleged breaches of 
the Code of Conduct, whether at District, Town or Parish level. These were tabulated 
in such a way as to show comparison with previous years and also with the 
Authority’s Strategic Alliance partner – High Peak Brough Council as follows:- 
 
  

Year No. of Complaints 

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
Parish Cllr 

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
District Cllr 

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Total 

High Peak 

Total 

2013/14 3 1 4 11 

2014/15 5 1 6 3 

2015/16 3 12 15 4 

2016/17 9 16 25 6 

 
Seminars had been run, mainly using in-house trainers, on the following topics:- 
 

 Workshop Raising Awareness of Prevent; 
 General Planning Applications Training; 
 The Housing & Planning Act 2016; 
 Overview & Scrutiny Seminar; 
 Safeguarding Training; 
 Planning Applications Committee Training; 
 Licensing Training. 

 Page 4



Standards Committee (SMDC) - 10 November 2017 
 

3 
 

A request was made for future reports to contain details of numbers of attendees at 
the seminars in an effort to understand how to maximise member attendance for the 
future. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 
 

13 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED - That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government 

Act , 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential information as 
defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as 
defined in Section 100i (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would 
be disclosed to the public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated. 

 
14 TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE 

PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
The Committee approved the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2017. 
 

15 LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 
 
Members noted the contents of a report in relation to the Local Government 
Ombudsman’s Annual Letter for 2016/17. 
 

16 STANDARDS COMPLAINTS MONITORING REPORT. 
 
Members noted the contents of a report regarding complaints made under the Code 
of Conduct. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 10.22 am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



          
 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Report to Standards Committee 
 

23 March 2018  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To provide a review of councillor development for the 
previous 12 months. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the report be noted. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Member Development Working Group co-ordinates the 
Council’s learning and development programme for councillors. It is 
a cross-party group, which is chaired by Councillor David Shaw and 
meets on a quarterly basis. 

 
3.2 The Learning and Development Programme is focused on 

responding to members’ training requirements and also aims to 
address any changes in legislation and the Council’s priorities. 

 
3.3 Generally, all Members are invited to attend all events, with some 

seminars, particularly around regulatory matters, such as Planning 
and Licensing, being essential for members of those committees to 
attend in order to fulfil requirements as set out in the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
 
 

TITLE: Annual Review of Councillor Development 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER:  Cllr Sybil Ralphs - Leader 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer - Governance 

& Member Support  
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 Providing effective training and development opportunities 
for councillors is integral to the achievement of the 
Council’s corporate priorities.   

 
 

5. Implications 
 

5.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

5.2 Workforce 
The majority of seminars for councillors are delivered in-house by 
District Council Officers. 
 

5.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

5.4 Financial Considerations 
A budget of £4,000 is available for councillor training and 
development opportunities. 
 

5.5 Legal 
None. 
 

5.6 Sustainability 
None. 
 

5.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
Councillors influence the programme by identifying requirements 
in Group Meetings and through the Member Development 
Working Group. 
 

5.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
None. 

 
6. Detail 
 

6.1 The Member Development Working Group aims to ensure that 
councillors are supported to deliver the Council’s statutory and 
corporate obligations, objectives and priorities and to provide 
Members with the information they need to fulfil their roles.  
 

6.2 The Group develops a programme of learning and development 
opportunities for all councillors that is updated on a rolling basis 
with activities identified through a variety of channels. Learning and 
development opportunities should benefit councillors as individuals 

Page 8



in their various roles and ultimately have a positive effect for the 
Council and the community.   

 
6.3 Members are requested to complete evaluation forms after each 

session.  Scores and comments are compiled and circulated to the 
course providers and are used to inform the structure and content 
of future courses.  

 
6.4 The majority of seminars have been undertaken in-house, with one 

exception being the Disabled Access Awareness Training which 
was provided by the Manchester Disabled Peoples’ Access Group.  
The delivery of seminars by officers has been shown to be a very 
cost effective method and the feedback from councillors supports 
the use of in-house expertise which allows for sessions to take into 
account the Council’s specific policies and procedures. 

 
6.5 The Development Programme included the following seminars and 

visits during the previous 12 months:  
 
 

Seminar Date No. of District 
Councillors in 
attendance 

Planning Training Session 14th September 
2017 

8 

Customer Service Day 
 

4th October 2017 28 

Code of Conduct Training 
(also attended by parish 
councillors) 

14th November 
2017 

11 

Visit to Northfield Village, 
Stafford 

18th December 
2017 
 

17 

Disabled Awareness Training 
for the Planning Applications 
Committee 

1st February 2017 
 

9 

 
6.6 The Chair of the Planning Applications Committee attended a two 

day residential Planning Decision Making course in Warwick, 
facilitated by the Improvement and Development Agency for Local 
Government. 

 
6.7 Course materials, including presentations, are automatically 

published on the Councillors’ Portal area of the Authority’s Intranet 
which can be accessed by all members.  

 
6.8 In addition to the main development programme, support is on-

going around Members’ use of IT.  This includes guidance on use of 
tablet computers and the Council’s committee management system, 
Modern.Gov.  This has been done via group training sessions, drop 
in sessions and 1:1s as required. 

Page 9



 
 
 
6.9 Future seminars have been arranged for councillors covering the 

following issues: 
 

 Modern Day Slavery; 
 Audit and Accounts; 
 The General Data Protection Regulations (also open to parish 

councillors); 
 Safeguarding. 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 
Intranet Councillors Portal 
http://smdc.alliance-
online.org/members/staffmoorlands 
 

Linden Vernon 
Senior Officer (Governance & Member Support)  
Email: linde.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
Tel: 01538 395613 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10

http://smdc.alliance-online.org/members/staffmoorlands
http://smdc.alliance-online.org/members/staffmoorlands
mailto:linde.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
 

Report to Standards Committee 
 

23 March 2018 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Appendices Attached:  Appendix 1 – Consultation Paper – Review of Local 
Government Ethical Standards 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report:   

 
1.1 To confirm details of a consultation exercise regarding local 

government ethical standards by the Committee for Standards in Public 
Life.  

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report and delegate 
authority to officers to respond to the consultation on behalf of the 
Council.  

  
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Government’s Committee for Standards in Public Life has 
launched a consultation exercise to inform its review of local 
government ethical standards. This consultation closes at 5pm on  
18 May 2018. 

 
3.2 Robust standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local 

democracy, maintain high standards of conduct, and to protect ethical 
practice in local government and the consultation responses will inform 
a review to ensure that the regulation of standards in public life is 
maintained.    

TITLE: Local Government Ethical Standards 
Consultation 

 
PORTFOLIO:   Leader of the Council – Councillor Ralphs 
 
OFFICER: Executive Director (People) and Monitoring 

Officer 
   

WARDS:   All 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
 

4. Implications 
 

4.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None. 
 

4.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

4.3 Equality and Diversity - Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Ethical standards support equality and diversity.  
 

4.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None. 
 

4.5 Legal 
 
None. 
 

4.6 Sustainability 
 
None. 
 

4.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
Internal.   

4.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None. 

 
 
5. Background and Detail 
 

5.1 Members may recall the advent of the Localism Act 2011 and the 
subsequent commitment to reforming the regulation of councillor 
conduct and ethical standards by abolishing the Standards Board for 
England (the organisation established by the Local Government Act 
2000) and replacing it with a requirement for local authorities to promote 
and maintain their own high standards of conduct.  

 
5.2 Since that time the Council has administered its own arrangements 

under a locally agreed code of conduct. The Government is now 
undertaking a review of the ethical standards framework to ensure that 
the ethical standards framework remains robust.   

Page 12



 
5.3  The terms of reference for the review are to: 
 

5.3.1 Examine the structures, processes and practices in local 
government in England for: 

 

 Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors; 

 Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due 
process; 

 Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct; 

 Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and 

 Whistleblowing. 
 

5.3.2 Assess whether the existing structures, processes and 
practices are conducive to high standards of conduct in local 
government; 

 
5.3.3 Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and 
 
5.3.4 Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make 

recommendations for any measures that could be put in place 
to prevent and address such intimidation. 

 
5.4 The review will consider all levels of local government in England, 

including town and parish councils, principal authorities, combined 
authorities (including Metro Mayors) and the Greater London Authority 
(including the Mayor of London). 
 

5.5 A series of questions are set out in the consultation paper attached at 
Appendix 1.  The Committee is requested to consider the contents of 
the consultation paper and suggest a suitable response. The closing 
date for responses to the consultation is 5pm on the 18 May 2018. 

  
 

 
 
 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix 1 

 

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation 

 

The Committee on Standards in Public Life is undertaking a review of local government 

ethical standards. 

 

Robust standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain high 

standards of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government. 

 

As part of this review, the Committee is holding a public stakeholder consultation. The 

consultation is open from 12:00 on Monday 29 January 2018 and closes at 17:00 on Friday 

18 May 2018. 

 

Terms of reference 

 

The terms of reference for the review are to: 

 

1. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in England for: 

a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors; 

b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process; 

c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct; 

d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and 

e. Whistleblowing. 

2. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are conducive to 

high standards of conduct in local government; 

3. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and 

4. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make recommendations for any 
measures that could be put in place to prevent and address such intimidation. 

 

The review will consider all levels of local government in England, including town and parish 

councils, principal authorities, combined authorities (including Metro Mayors) and the 

Greater London Authority (including the Mayor of London). 

 

Local government ethical standards are a devolved issue. The Committee’s remit does not 

enable it to consider ethical standards issues in devolved nations in the UK except with the 

agreement of the relevant devolved administrations. However, we welcome any evidence 

relating to local government ethical standards in the devolved nations of the UK, particularly 

examples of best practice, for comparative purposes. 

 

Submissions will be published online alongside our final report, with any contact information 

(for example, email addresses) removed. 

 

Consultation questions 

 

The Committee invites responses to the following consultation questions. 

 

Please note that not all questions will be relevant to all respondents and that submissions do 

not need to respond to every question. Respondents may wish to give evidence about only 

one local authority, several local authorities, or local government in England as a whole.  

Page 15



 
 
 

 

 

Please do let us know whether your evidence is specific to one particular authority or is a 

more general comment on local government in England. 

 

Whilst we understand submissions may be grounded in personal experience, please note 

that the review is not an opportunity to have specific grievances considered. 

 

 

 

a. Are the existing structures, processes and practices in place working to ensure high 

standards of conduct by local councillors? If not, please say why. 

b. What, if any, are the most significant gaps in the current ethical standards regime for 

local government? 

 

Codes of conduct 

 

c. Are local authority adopted codes of conduct for councillors clear and easily 

understood? Do the codes cover an appropriate range of behaviours? What 

examples of good practice, including induction processes, exist? 

d. A local authority has a statutory duty to ensure that its adopted code of conduct for 

councillors is consistent with the Seven Principles of Public Life and that it includes 

appropriate provision (as decided by the local authority) for registering and declaring 

councillors’ interests. Are these requirements appropriate as they stand? If not, 

please say why. 

 

Investigations and decisions on allegations 

 

e. Are allegations of councillor misconduct investigated and decided fairly and with due 

process? 

i. What processes do local authorities have in place for investigating and 

deciding upon allegations? Do these processes meet requirements for due 

process? Should any additional safeguards be put in place to ensure due 

process? 

ii. Is the current requirement that the views of an Independent Person must be 

sought and taken into account before deciding on an allegation sufficient to 

ensure the objectivity and fairness of the decision process? Should this 

requirement be strengthened? If so, how? 

iii. Monitoring Officers are often involved in the process of investigating and 

deciding upon code breaches. Could Monitoring Officers be subject to 

conflicts of interest or undue pressure when doing so? How could Monitoring 

Officers be protected from this risk? 

 

Sanctions 

 

f. Are existing sanctions for councillor misconduct sufficient? 

i. What sanctions do local authorities use when councillors are found to have 

breached the code of conduct? Are these sanctions sufficient to deter 

breaches and, where relevant, to enforce compliance? 

Page 16



 
 
 

 

 

ii. Should local authorities be given the ability to use additional sanctions? If 

so, what should these be? 

 

Declaring interests and conflicts of interest 

 

g. Are existing arrangements to declare councillors’ interests and manage conflicts of 

interest satisfactory? If not please say why. 

i. A local councillor is under a legal duty to register any pecuniary interests (or 

those of their spouse or partner), and cannot participate in discussion or 

votes that engage a disclosable pecuniary interest, nor take any further 

steps in relation to that matter, although local authorities can grant 

dispensations under certain circumstances. Are these statutory duties 

appropriate as they stand? 

ii. What arrangements do local authorities have in place to declare councillors’ 

interests, and manage conflicts of interest that go beyond the statutory 

requirements? Are these satisfactory? If not, please say why. 

 

Whistleblowing 

 

h. What arrangements are in place for whistleblowing, by the public, councillors, and 

officials? Are these satisfactory? 

 

Improving standards 

 

i. What steps could local authorities take to improve local government ethical standards? 

j. What steps could central government take to improve local government ethical 

standards? 

 

Intimidation of local councillors 

 

k. What is the nature, scale, and extent of intimidation towards local councillors? 

i. What measures could be put in place to prevent and address this 

intimidation? 

 

Who can respond? 

 

Anyone with an interest may make a submission. The Committee welcomes submissions 

from members of the public.  

 

However, the consultation is aimed particularly at the following stakeholders, both 

individually and corporately: 

 

● Local authorities and standards committees; 

● Local authority members (for example, Parish Councillors, District Councillors); 

● Local authority officials (for example, Monitoring Officers); 

● Think tanks with an interest or expertise in local government; 

● Academics with interest or expertise in local government; and 

● Representative bodies or groups related to local government. 

Page 17



 
 
 

 

 

How to make a submission 

 

Submissions can be sent either in electronic format or in hard copy. 

 

Submissions must: 

● State clearly who the submission is from, i.e. whether from yourself or sent on behalf 

of an organisation; 

● Include a brief introduction about yourself/your organisation and your reason for 

submitting evidence; 

● Be in doc, docx, rtf, txt, ooxml or odt format, not PDF; 

● Be concise – we recommend no more than 2,000 words in length; and 

● Contain a contact email address if you are submitting by email. 

  

Submissions should: 

● Have numbered paragraphs; and 

● Comprise a single document. If there are any annexes or appendices, these should 

be included in the same document. 

  

It would be helpful if your submission included any factual information you have to offer from 

which the Committee might be able to draw conclusions, and any recommendations for 

action which you would like the Committee to consider. 

  

The Committee may choose not to accept a submission as evidence, or not to publish a 

submission even if it is accepted as evidence. This may occur where a submission is very 

long or contains material which is inappropriate. 

  

Submissions sent to the Committee after the deadline of 17:00 on Friday 18 May 2018 may 

not be considered. 

  

Submissions can be sent: 

1.  Via email to: public@public-standards.gov.uk 

2.  Via post to: 

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards 

Committee on Standards in Public Life 

GC:07 

1 Horse Guards Road 

London 

SW1A 2HQ 

  

If you have any questions, please contact the Committee’s Secretariat by email 

(public@public-standards.gov.uk) or phone (0207 271 2948). 

 

 

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the previous meeting.
	Minutes

	5 Annual Review of Councillor Development
	6 Local Government Ethical Standards Consultation
	6a. Local_government_ethical_standards_consultation_document

	8 To approve as a correct record the Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting.
	9 Standards Complaints Monitoring Report.

